The Senate

Finance and Public Administration Legislation Committee

Budget estimates 2014–15

© Commonwealth of Australia 2014

ISBN 978-1-76010-027-8

Senate Finance and Public Administration Committee Secretariat:

Ms Lyn Beverley (Secretary)

Ms Margaret Cahill (Research Officer)

Ms Lauren Carnevale (Administrative Officer)

The Senate
PO Box 6100
Parliament House
Canberra ACT 2600
Ph: 02 6277 3530

Fax: 02 6277 5809

E-mail: fpa.sen@aph.gov.au

Internet: www.aph.gov.au/senate_fpa

Printed by the Senate Printing Unit, Parliament House, Canberra.

Membership of the Committee

Members

Senator Cory Bernardi (Chair)	LP, SA
Senator the Hon Kate Lundy (Deputy Chair)	ALP, ACT
Senator Bridget McKenzie	NAT, VIC
Senator Lee Rhiannon	AG, NSW
Senator Dean Smith	LP, WA
Senator Mehmet Tillem	ALP, VIC

Senators in attendance

Senators Bernardi (Chair), Lundy (Deputy Chair), McKenzie, Rhiannon, Smith, Tillem, Bushby, Collins, Dastyari, Di Natale, Faulkner, Fawcett, Heffernan, Kroger, Lines, Ludlam, Ludwig, Madigan, McLucas, Moore, O'Neill, Parry, Peris, Polley, Seselja, Siewert, Sterle, Waters, Wong, Xenophon

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	V
Membership of the Committee	iii
Chapter 1	1
Budget Estimates 2014–15	1
Portfolio coverage	1
Portfolio Budget Statements 2014-15 and Portfolio Supplementary Estimates Statements 2013-14	
Hearings	2
Parliamentary privilege	3
Questions on notice and Hansard transcripts	4
Note on references	5
Chapter 2	7
Parliamentary departments and portfolio issues	7
Parliamentary departments, 26 May 2014	7
Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio, 26 and 27 May 2014	8
Finance Portfolio, 28 and 29 May 2014	11
Cross Portfolio Indigenous Matters, 30 May 2014	15
Appendix 1	19
Departments and agencies under the Committee's oversight	19
Parliamentary Departments	19
Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio	19
Finance Portfolio	20
Appendix 2	21
Tabled documents	21
Monday, 26 May 2014	21
Tuesday, 27 May 2014	21
Wednesday, 28 May 2014	21
Thursday, 29 May 2014	21
Friday, 30 May 2014	22

Chapter 1

Budget Estimates 2014–15

- 1.1 On 13 May 2014 the Senate referred the following to the Senate Finance and Public Administration Legislation Committee (the committee) for examination and report:
- Particulars of proposed expenditure in respect of the year ending on 30 June 2015;
- Particulars of certain proposed expenditure in respect of the year ending on 30 June 2015:
- Particulars of certain proposed expenditure in relation to the parliamentary departments in respect of the year ending on 30 June 2015;
- Particulars of certain proposed supplementary expenditure in respect of the year ending on 30 June 2014; and
- Particulars of proposed supplementary expenditure in respect of the year ending on 30 June 2014.

Portfolio coverage

- 1.2 The committee has responsibility for examining the expenditure and outcomes of the following:
- Parliament;¹
- Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio;
- Finance Portfolio; and
- Cross Portfolio Indigenous Matters.

Portfolio Budget Statements 2014-15 and Portfolio Supplementary Additional Estimates Statements 2013-14

- 1.3 The Portfolio Budget Statements 2014-15 for the parliamentary departments, the Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio, and the Finance Portfolio were tabled in the Senate on 13 May 2014.
- 1.4 The Portfolio Supplementary Additional Estimates Statements 2013-14 for the Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio was also tabled on 13 May 2014. This document provided details of the proposed additional resources of \$198.4 million through Appropriation Bills (No. 5 and No. 6) 2013-14 for the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet due to:

As a matter of comity between the Houses neither House inquires into the operations of the other House. For this reason, neither the annual report of, nor the proposed expenditure for, the Department of the House of Representatives is referred to a Senate committee for review.

...the transfer of funds from other agencies as a result of Machinery of Government changes that were reflected in the Administrative Arrangements Order of 18 September 2013, and then 12 December 2013.

Hearings

- 1.5 The committee held public hearings on 26 to 30 May 2014. The parliamentary departments and the Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio (excluding Indigenous matters) were examined on 26 and 27 May, the Finance Portfolio was examined on 28 and 29 May, and the Cross Portfolio Indigenous Matters hearing was held on 30 May 2014.
- 1.6 The committee took evidence from the President of the Senate, Senator the Hon John Hogg, and the following Ministers accompanied by officers of relevant departments and agencies:
- Senator the Hon Eric Abetz, the Minister for Employment and Minister Assisting the Prime Minister for the Public Service, representing the Prime Minister;
- Senator the Hon Michaelia Cash, Assistant Minister for Immigration and Border Protection, and Minister Assisting the Prime Minister for Women;
- Senator the Hon Mathias Cormann, Minister for Finance;
- Senator the Hon Michael Ronaldson, Minister for Veterans' Affairs and Special Minister of State; and
- Senator the Hon Nigel Scullion, Minister for Indigenous Affairs.
- 1.7 The committee expresses its appreciation for the assistance of the President, Ministers and the officers who appeared.
- 1.8 Over the course of the hearings, the committee took evidence from the following departments and agencies:

Parliamentary departments

- Department of the Senate
- Parliamentary Budget Office
- Department of Parliamentary Services

Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio

- COAG Reform Council Secretariat
- Office of the Official Secretary to the Governor-General
- National Australia Day Council Limited
- Australian National Audit Office

2 *Portfolio Supplementary Additional Estimates Statements 2013-14* – Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio, p. 1.

- Australian Public Service Commission
- Independent National Security Legislation Monitor³
- Office of the Commonwealth Ombudsman
- Office of National Assessments
- Office of the Inspector-General of Intelligence and Security
- Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (including the Office for Women and excluding Outcome 2 Indigenous)

Finance Portfolio

- ASC Pty Ltd
- Future Fund Management Agency
- ComSuper
- Commonwealth Superannuation Corporation
- Department of Finance
- Medibank Private Limited
- Australian Electoral Commission

Cross Portfolio Indigenous Matters

- Torres Strait Regional Authority
- Office of Township Leasing
- Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations
- Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (Outcome 2 Indigenous)
- Department of Health (in relation to Indigenous Health issues)

Parliamentary privilege

1.9 A potential issue of parliamentary privilege arose during examination of the Department of Parliamentary Services (DPS) in relation to the use of CCTV footage as evidence in staff disciplinary proceedings. It was revealed to the committee that DPS had used CCTV footage to monitor a staff member as part of a code of conduct investigation. The footage apparently shows the staff member providing information to Senator the Hon John Faulkner's office. In response to questions on whether the use of the footage was in breach of the CCTV Code of Practice, the Secretary of DPS, Ms Carol Mills advised:

As the former Independent National Security Legislation Monitor's term of appointment expired on 20 April 2014 and a new monitor has not been appointed, Dr Margo McCarthy, Associate Secretary National Security and International Policy, Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet, attended the hearing to answer questions in the absence of a monitor.

⁴ *Proof Committee Hansard*, 26 May 2014, pp 22-29 and 51-54.

- ...I feel there may have been an inadvertent and ancillary breach of the statement of purpose in undertaking what was an appropriately constituted approval to look at a code of conduct issue under category (e) of the policy.⁵
- 1.10 Senator Faulkner subsequently tabled advice from the Clerk of the Senate discussing the parliamentary privilege issues arising from this incident, including the possible impact on the rights and freedoms of senators working in Parliament House. The Clerk advised:

In my view, the circumstances do give rise to concerns that a contempt of interference, or attempted interference, with the free performance by a senator of the senator's duties as a senator may have been committed. Disciplinary action against a person that has the tendency or effect of hampering the provision of information to senators could readily constitute an improper interference with the free performance of a senator's duties as a senator and, therefore, a contempt. The use of electronic surveillance of a senator's office for unauthorised purposes to intimidate persons who provide information to senators is also capable of being found to be a contempt.⁶

1.11 The committee wrote to the President of the Senate on 27 May 2014 to raise this matter of privilege under standing order 81, seeking the referral of the matter to the Committee of Privileges. On 18 June 2014, the Senate agreed to refer the matter to the Committee of Privileges for inquiry and report.⁷

Questions on notice and Hansard transcripts

1.12 Some Senators sought an explanation for the late provision of answers to questions on notice from the Additional Estimates 2013-14 round for the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet. The committee had set 11 April 2014 as the due date for answers and the department subsequently provided them on the evening of 14 May 2014. The committee was advised by Ms Elizabeth Kelly, Deputy Secretary, Governance that resourcing was an issue:

We take all of those accountability obligations very seriously, but we only have the resources that we have. When the volume increases, we work through it as quickly as we possibly can, but sometimes that means that we are not always able to make the timeframes. We apologise for that, but I can assure you that we are working through them as quickly as we possibly can.⁸

⁵ *Proof Committee Hansard*, 26 May 2014, p. 28. Item (e) of the CCTV Code of Practice Statement of Purpose specifies that the CCTV system may be used to 'Provide evidence upon which to take criminal and civil proceedings'.

Tabled document, Correspondence from the Clerk of the Senate to Senator the Hon John Faulkner, dated 26 May 2014.

⁷ *Journals of the Senate*, No. 32, 18 June 2014, pp 903-904.

⁸ *Proof Committee Hansard*, 27 May 2014, p. 4.

- 1.13 When advised that it has been the department's practice to provide all answers to the committee in one lot, it was suggested by the committee that adopting a staged approach and providing batches of answers when available, may assist in a more timely provision of answers in future rounds of estimates. The department undertook to consider this option.⁹
- 1.14 The committee has set 11 July 2014 as the date for the return of answers to questions on notice arising from the Budget Estimates 2014–15 hearings. This information, together with the Hansard transcripts of proceedings of hearings, are published on the committee's website at:

http://www.aph.gov.au/Parliamentary_Business/Senate_Estimates/fapactte/estimates/bud1415/index

Note on references

1.15 References to the estimates Hansard are to the proof Hansard; page numbers may vary between the proof and the official Hansard transcript.

Chapter 2

Parliamentary departments and portfolio issues

2.1 This chapter lists some of the key issues raised for each department and agency examined during the committee's hearings on the Budget Estimates 2014-15.

Parliamentary departments, 26 May 2014

Department of the Senate

- Consultation on the Department of Parliamentary Services (DPS) security screening trial (pp 3-6)
- CCTV Code of Practice and advice on Parliamentary privilege implications regarding use of CCTV footage by DPS in Parliament House (pp 6-9)
- Induction program for new Senators (pp 9-11)
- Funding issues efficiency dividend and impact on the functioning of the Senate and work of Senators (pp 12-13)
- Funding models for parliamentary functions (p. 14)
- New IT platform for the generation of the 'Senate Red' (pp 15-16)
- Statistics on committee activity (p. 16)
- Staffing requirements to facilitate the transitional office arrangements for new Senators (pp 16-17)
- Occasional lecture program (p. 17)

Parliamentary Budget Office

- Impact of fiscal consolidation measures in the budget on future deficit reductions (pp 17-19)
- Additional efficiency dividend and impact on staffing and services (pp 19-20)
- Costing requests statistics and processes (p. 20)

Department of Parliamentary Services

- CCTV Code of Practice and use of CCTV footage by the DPS for a staff code of conduct matter (pp 22-29, 45, 51-54)
- Trial of new security arrangements involving the reduced screening of certain parliamentary pass holders (pp 29-33, 54-55)
- Hansard staffing turnover and suspensions (pp 33-35)
- Fundraising events in Parliament House, including use of Presiding Officers' suites (pp 36-41)
- Commissioning of official portraits of office holders, including for former Speaker the Hon Peter Slipper and former Governor-General Dame Quentin Bryce AD CVO (pp 41-43)

- Library research service and prioritising process (pp. 47)
- Location and use of Queen's crockery set (pp 44, 48-50)
- Crockery purchased by Senators Madigan and Xenophon (pp 50-51)
- Procurement processes for the Australian flag for Parliament House (pp 46-47, 50-51)

Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio, 26 and 27 May 2014

COAG Reform Council Secretariat

- Abolition of the Council and processes for the renewal of the office lease (pp 62-63, 68)
- Future reporting arrangements (pp 64-67)
- Staffing (p. 69)
- Reports produced and feedback from the states (p. 69)
- Mr Brumby's chairmanship (pp 69-70)

Office of the Official Secretary to the Governor-General

- Farewell functions (pp 73-74)
- Use of 'the Honourable' honorific by Governors-General (pp 74-75)
- Refurbishment work of Vice-Regal buildings (pp 75-76)
- Introduction of Knights and Dames in the Order of Australia (pp 76-77)
- Processes for the first Executive Council meeting of the new Government on 18 September 2014 and timing of the receipt of meeting papers (pp 78-81)
- Order of Australia nomination processes and statistics on awards, including gender ratio (p. 81)
- Departure of Mr Brady as Official Secretary to the Governor-General and the appointment process for his successor (pp 77, 83)

National Australia Day Council Limited

- Procurement of the Australian flag (pp 84-86)
- Grant funding arrangements with the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (p. 86)

Australian National Audit Office (ANAO)

- Impact of additional efficiency dividend on staff and services, including the forward work schedule (pp 88, 97)
- Commission of Audit recommendation to expand ANAO mandate to include auditing of performance indicators (p. 88)
- Process for appointment of Head of Commission of Audit (p. 88-90)
- Audit on the Building Better Regional Cities Program (pp 91-95)

• Membership and participation of international auditing/accounting organisations (pp 96-97)

Australian Public Service Commission (APSC)

- APS job losses and the redeployment register (pp 98-102)
- Monitoring of employee assistance programs (p. 101)
- Workshop on mental fitness (pp 102-103)
- Venues for APSC training courses and catering costs (pp 103-104)
- Community and Public Sector Union wage claim and potential impact on redundancies (p. 105)

Independent National Security Legislation Monitor (INSLM)/Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet

- Proposed abolition of the INSLM (pp 108-112)
- Reason for not appointing a new monitor to fill current vacancy (pp 108-109)
- Timing of the tabling of annual reports (p. 109)
- Monitor's remuneration (p. 112)

Office of the Commonwealth Ombudsman

- Proposed additional functions to the Office of the Commonwealth Ombudsman following the proposed abolition of the Australian Information Commissioner and the Freedom of Information Commissioner (pp 113-115)
- Performance against office key performance indicators (p. 115)
- Interactions with international organisations (pp 115-116)

Office of National Assessments

- Impact of efficiency dividend and savings measures (pp 117-118)
- Impact of the reduction in staffing (p. 118)

Office of the Inspector-General of Intelligence and Security (IGIS)

- Statement by Mr Bernard Collaery to the Senate Privileges Committee inquiry and whether the IGIS intended to undertake further action as a result (pp 120-124)
- Upgrade to IT network (pp 124-125)
- Inspection program (p. 125)
- Complaints processes and trends (p. 125)

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet, 27 May 2014

Outcome 1

• Staffing issues – numbers, attrition rate, redundancies, spill and fill processes (pp 8-17, 19)

- Prime Minister's accommodation at the Australian Federal Police College (pp 18-19)
- Funding of Australian Council of Trade Unions delegation to G20 conference (pp 21-23)
- Lease for the house intended for Prime Minister's temporary accommodation during The Lodge refurbishment (pp 23-26)
- Role of hospitality officer on the Prime Minister's staff (pp 27-30)
- Prime Minister's decision not to attend an event at Deakin University and advice from Australian Federal Police (pp 32-35, 42)
- Freedom of Information requests (pp 35-36)
- Purchase of video and photographic equipment for Prime Minister's Office (PMO) (pp 36-40)
- Funding of G20 meetings hosted by Australia, including hospitality and the Memorandum of Understanding in regard to the funding of these events (pp 44-47)
- Overseas trips of PMO staff on official business independent of the Prime Minister (pp 50-56)
- Security clearances for ministerial staff (pp 56-57)
- Direction to use 'Burma' and not 'Myanmar' across government (p. 60)
- Progress of the enactment of legislation to facilitate the change to the rules of royal succession (pp 62-63)
- Prime Minister's website demarcation of responsibilities relating to costs and content, video messages concerning state elections and authorisation requirements under the *Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918* (pp 64-70)
- Hospitality expenditure for official residences (pp 74-78)
- Renewable Energy Target Review (pp 79-82)
- Northern Australian Taskforce terms of reference and staffing numbers (pp 96-100)
- Appointment process of Mr Stafford as Cabinet Secretary and the functions and responsibilities of the position (pp 101-106)
- Ministerial order of precedence and the reason for its confidentiality (pp 106-109)
- Update on the progress of the appointment of the vacant positions on the boards of SBS and ABC (pp 109-110)
- Processes for the preparation of papers for the first Executive Council meeting prior to the swearing in of the new government (pp 112-115)
- Costs of the Governor-General Designate (pp 116-117)

- Former Prime Ministers accessing certain departmental documents under archives legislation (pp 120-122)
- Possible breach of the Lobbying Code of Conduct by a senior adviser of the lobbying firm Communications and Public Relations Pty Ltd (pp 123-124)

Office for Women

- Report of the Australian Government Delegation to the 58th Session of the United Nations Commission on the Status of Women (pp 88)
- Role of the Ambassador for Women and Girls (p. 89)
- Program budget (pp 90-91)
- Administration of awards for women (p. 95)
- Funding for National Action Plan to Reduce Violence against Women and Children (pp 95-96)

Finance Portfolio, 28 and 29 May 2014

28 May 2014

ASC Pty Ltd/Department of Finance

- Update on progress of the Air Warfare Destroyer project and the Winter review (pp 4-5)
- Comparison of productivity with international benchmarks (p. 5)
- Impact of the block-building process on quality and productivity (p. 6)
- Commission of Audit recommendation to privatise the ASC Pty Ltd (pp 7-8, 13)
- Process for determining the projected dividend (p. 8)
- Findings of the final review into the Collins-class submarine sustainment program (p. 9)
- Future potential workforce requirements (pp 10-12)

Future Fund Management Agency/Department of Finance

- Process for the selection of a new managing director (p. 16)
- Processes for the establishment of the Medical Research Future Fund and the Asset Recycling Fund, and closure of the Education Investment Fund, Building Australia Fund and Health and Hospitals Fund (pp 17, 22, 26-30)
- Short-term rental of an apartment in New York (pp 21-22)
- Position on investment in emerging markets (p. 24)
- Public commentary by the Chairman of the Future Fund, the Hon Peter Costello (pp 19, 25)
- Investment in diversified funds and the risk of investment in products related to tobacco companies (pp 27-28)

• The inclusion of a gender breakdown on the number of counsel briefed in the annual report (p. 29)

ComSuper/Commonwealth Superannuation Corporation/Department of Finance

- Proposed merger of ComSuper and Commonwealth Superannuation Corporation (pp 31, 41-42)
- Treatment of superannuation interest expense in the budget papers (pp 33-40)
- Governance arrangements for the new Australian Defence Force Superannuation Scheme (pp 44-45)

Department of Finance (Finance)

Outcome 1

- Medium term projections reflected in the budget forming the basis for the cumulative savings of \$80 billion from 2017-18 to 2024-25 and breakdown for schools and hospitals (pp 46-51)
- Provision in the budget's contingency reserve for the Paid Parental Leave scheme (pp 55 -59)
- Examination of expected increases in payments in 2014-15 as a result of parameter and other variations since 2013-14 MYEFO in relation to the National Disability Insurance Scheme (pp 59-61), the Private Health Insurance Rebate, the Disability Support Pension, the Child Care Fee Assistance and the National Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements (pp 91-93)
- Location of the detailed family outcome table in the 2014-15 budget documents (pp 61-63, 100-102)
- Consideration of Commission of Audit reports in the budget process (pp 63-65)
- Operation of the 'fiscal rules' under the former government (pp 65-69)
- Australia's current status in relation to membership of the Open Government Partnership (pp 69-75)
- School funding level in 2017-18 (pp 81-82)
- Higher education reforms in the budget, including examination of budget measure: Expanding opportunity expansion of the demand driven system and sharing costs fairly (pp 84 -91)
- Processes for the development of the legislative remedy in response to the High Court decision on the Williams case on funding of the School Chaplaincy program (pp 93-96)
- Fiscal dividend in relation to government's border protection policies of \$2.5 billion over five years (p. 97)

- Examination of Cross Portfolio budget measures: Administered Programme Indexation Pause, and Efficiency Dividend a further temporary increase of 0.25 per cent for 2014-15 to 2016-17 (pp 97-99)
- Examination of budget measure: Australian Broadcasting Corporation and Special Broadcasting Service Corporation efficiency savings, which imposes a one per cent reduction in the base funding of the organisations (pp 99, 113-115)
- Accounting treatment of the Medical Research Future Fund in the budget papers (pp104-105)
- Funding and operation of the Asset Recycling Fund and the asset recycling incentive program (pp 109-111)
- Withdrawal and reissue of a press release from the Minister of Finance on 13 May 2014, concerning the status of the 2014 Commission of Audit recommendations (pp 111-113, 116-117)
- Treatment of budget under-spends, particularly in relation to the transfer of \$6.7 million from the Royal Commission into Institutional Responses to Child Sexual Abuse to the Royal Commission into the Home Insulation Program (pp 119-122)

29 May 2014

Medibank Private/Department of Finance

- Rationale for the \$500 excess payment limit for private health insurance (pp 5-7)
- Impact of certain budget measures on the business operation, including the decision to pause the indexation of income thresholds for the Medicare levy surcharge and the private health insurance rebate for three years from 1 July 2015 (p. 7)
- Sale of Medibank Private staff and resources allocated to work on the sale, contracts entered into in relation to the sale, timing of the initial public offering, impact of sale on suite of products currently offered, use of the proceeds of the sale, impact on premiums and policy holders (pp 8-18)
- Changes to the Board (pp 16-17)
- Impact of previous special dividend payments (pp 18-19)
- Changes to means testing of the private health insurance rebate by the former government and impact of policy holders downgrading their cover (p. 19)

Department of Finance (in continuation)

Outcome 2

• Examination of budget measure: Smaller Government – scoping studies for four operations of government, which covers Australian Hearing Services, Defence Housing Australia, the Royal Australian Mint and the registry function of the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (pp 21-25)

- Sale of Commonwealth assets and examination of budget measure: Smaller Government surplus Commonwealth properties (pp 25-30)
- Progress on the refurbishments of The Lodge and the John Gorton Building, including the management of asbestos found in The Lodge (pp 31-35, 53-54)
- Official Establishments division of responsibilities between Finance and PM&C (p. 33)
- Processes for the repair of a wall at The Lodge following a car crash in March 2014, including the responsibility for costs (p. 33)
- Long term structural profitability of Australia Post (pp 36-37)
- Status of compensation claims of former ABC and public service employees who were allegedly misled into not joining the Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (pp 37-41)
- Status of the Asbestos Safety and Eradication Agency (pp 41-42)
- Update on the construction of the ASIO building (pp 46-47)
- Surplus Commonwealth property divestment (pp 47-49)
- Point Peron land transfer (pp 51-52)
- Update on the Kenbi land claim and the status of relevant Commonwealth property interests (p. 52)
- Status of remediation work on Malabar Headland (pp 52-53)

Outcome 1 (in continuation)

Government Campaign Advertising

- The issuing of a direction by the Special Minister of State in the previous government to the Secretary of the Department of Finance to authorise the advertising for the 'By boat, no visa' campaign during the caretaker period of the last election (pp 43-45)
- Approval processes for government advertising and role of the Special Minister of State (p. 55)
- Interim Guidelines on Information and Advertising Campaigns by Australian Government Departments and Agencies (pp 57-61)
- Campaigns endorsed by the Special Minister of State or his representative against the Short-term Interim Guidelines (pp 62-63)
- Savings of \$43.3 million over four years for more efficient practices for public affairs and internal communication (pp 63-64)
- Status of advertising in relation to budget measures (pp 66-67)
- Items in the budget papers with an advertising component (p. 70)
- Processes for the engagement of the new master media agency Mitchell and Partners Australia Pty Ltd (pp 72-73)

Outcome 3

- Commonwealth Parliamentary Offices provision of WiFi and telepresence facilities (pp 74-76)
- Requirement for Members of Parliament (Staff) [MOP(S)] Act staff to undergo police checks and security clearances (pp 76-77, 96-97)
- Training courses available to MOP(S) Act staff (p. 79)
- Constitution, operation and consultation processes of the MOP(S) Act Staff Work Health and Safety Committee (pp 80-81)
- Compliance processes with the Statement of Ministerial Standards, particularly in relation to former staffer of Minister Scullion, Mr William Johnstone (p 77, 85-91)
- Senator Sinodinos' entitlements after stepping aside as Assistant Treasurer (pp 94-96)
- Update to the *Opposition Office Holders' Entitlements Handbook* (pp 101-105)
- Relocation of the ministerial office to Armidale for the Minister for Agriculture, the Hon Barnaby Joyce MP (pp 105-107)
- Coalition Advisory Service resourcing (pp 108-109)
- Update on recent changes to the parliamentary entitlements regime (pp 110-111)
- Training provided to new Senators and Members (p. 111)

Australian Electoral Commission (AEC)

- Multiple voting (pp 113-118)
- Authorisation requirements for videos containing electoral advertisements published on websites, particularly in relation to videos on the Prime Minister's website concerning state elections (pp 118-120)
- Processes for AEC monitoring of investigations of the New South Wales Independent Commission Against Corruption, particularly in relation to Operation Spicer and Operation Credo (pp 120-123, 130-132)
- Online and direct enrolment processes (pp 124-128)
- Processes undertaken for amended returns (pp 128-129)

Cross Portfolio Indigenous Matters, 30 May 2014

Torres Strait Regional Authority

- Decrease in funding levels and impact on programs (pp 4-6)
- Staffing levels (p. 7)
- Home loan programs (pp 7-8)

Office of Township Leasing

- Composition and operation of consultative forums (pp 9, 11)
- Availability of bank loans under the township leasing model (p. 10)

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

- Investigation of allegations of fraud in relation to Jawoyn Association Aboriginal Corporation and the Adnyamathanha Traditional Land Association (pp 12-19)
- Funding of the Arrulka Business Aboriginal Corporation to manage the Mbantua Festival (pp 19-21)
- Training, capacity building and dispute resolution (pp 21-22)

Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet

Outcome 2

- Impact of savings measures on Indigenous programs and status of certain programs (pp 22-30)
- Changes to Indigenous specific national partnership agreements (pp 30- 31, 34)
- Terms of employment of Mr William Johnstone in Minister Scullion's office and the declaration of interests processes for his employment (pp 31-33)
- Transition and consultation processes for the streamlining of 150 programs into five Indigenous Advancement Strategy items (pp 35-40, 44)
- Staffing reductions in the department, including the 'spill and fill' process and the number of voluntary redundancies (pp 40-43)

Education and Employment

- Cessation of funding for Child and Family Centres (pp 52-54)
- Remote School Attendance Strategy, update on truancy officer numbers, turnover and evaluation, and frequency of reporting data from state and territory jurisdictions (pp 54-58)

Housing

- Funding split for the Municipal and Essential Services Program (pp 58-59)
- Status of township leasing at Yirrkala and Gunbalunya (pp 59-60)

Department of Health

- Savings in Indigenous health programs and impact on services (pp 45, 51)
- Consideration of the effect of the proposed Medicare co-payment in program reviews (pp 47-48)
- Tackling smoking and healthy lifestyle activities (p. 49)
- Future funding for renal services (pp 51-52)

Senator Cory Bernardi Chair

Appendix 1

Departments and agencies under the Committee's oversight

Parliamentary Departments

- Department of the Senate
- Parliamentary Budget Office
- Department of Parliamentary Services

Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio

- Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
- Australian National Audit Office
- Australian Public Service Commission
- COAG Reform Council Secretariat
- Defence Force Remuneration Tribunal (APSC secretariat)
- Independent National Security Legislation Monitor
- National Australia Day Council
- Office of the Commonwealth Ombudsman
- Office of the Inspector-General of Intelligence and Security
- Office of National Assessments
- Office of the Official Secretary to the Governor-General
- Remuneration Tribunal (APSC secretariat)

Indigenous agencies

- Aboriginal Hostels Limited
- Aboriginal Land Commissioner
- Anindilyakwa Land Council
- Central Land Council
- Indigenous Business Australia
- Indigenous Land Corporation
- Northern Land Council
- Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations
- Office Township Leasing
- Outback Stores Pty Ltd

- Tiwi Land Council
- Torres Strait Regional Authority
- Wreck Bay Aboriginal Community Council

Finance Portfolio

- Department of Finance
- Australian Electoral Commission
- ComSuper
- Commonwealth Superannuation Corporation
- Future Fund Management Agency
- Medibank Private
- Albury-Wodonga Development Corporation
- Australian River Co Ltd
- ASC Pty Ltd

Appendix 2

Tabled documents

Monday, 26 May 2014

Parliamentary departments

• Senator the Hon John Faulkner: Advice from the Clerk of the Senate concerning the use of the CCTV system in Parliament House - Issues of Parliamentary Privilege

Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio

- Office of the Official Secretary to the Governor-General: Photographs showing the degradation of the Vice-Regal buildings
- Office of the Official Secretary to the Governor-General: Questions from Mr Ian McPhedran and Government House responses, 10 April 2014

Tuesday, 27 May 2014

Prime Minister and Cabinet Portfolio

- Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet: Organisation chart
- Senator Dastyari: Extract from the Senate Legal and Constitutional Affairs Legislation Committee *Proof Hansard*, 26 May 2014, p. 28

Wednesday, 28 May 2014

Finance Portfolio

- ASC Pty Ltd: Opening statement by Mr Stephen Ludlam, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
- Department of Finance: Extract from the Report of the National Commission of Audit Phase One, Table 4.2, entitled 'Large and fast growing programmes'

Thursday, 29 May 2014

Finance Portfolio

- Department of Finance: Campaigns or phases of campaigns endorsed by the Special Minister of State or his representative against the Short-term Interim Guidelines
- Department of Finance: Personal Classifications as at 1 May 2014, Establishment Variances Government, 1 February to 1 May 2014, and Government Personal Positions as at 1 May 2014

- Senator the Hon Penny Wong: *Sydney Morning Herald* article entitled 'Staff dispute fuels speculation over performance of Defence Minister David Johnston', dated 29 May 2014
- Australian Electoral Commission: Opening statement by Mr Tom Rogers, A/g Electoral Commissioner
- Australian Electoral Commission: Electoral Backgrounder Electoral Advertising, July 2013 and Electoral Law Authorisation Guidelines, updated August 2013
- Senator Lee Rhiannon: Extract from *The Guardian Australia* article entitled 'Questions raised over political donations to Labor and Liberal parties', dated 11 March 2014

Friday, 30 May 2014

Cross Portfolio Indigenous Matters

- Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet: Status of National Partnership Agreements
- Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet: Current Indigenous Affairs Grants